DEVELOPMENT ACADEMY OF THE PHILIPPINES
ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT FOR CY 2013

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Introduction

The Development Academy of the Philippines (DAP) with registered office address at
DAP Building, San Migue! Avenue, Pasig City, Philippines is primarily tasked to support
the developmental forces at work in the nation's economy through selective human
resource development programs, research, data collection, and information services. it
also discharges a regional role in initiating and catalyzing exchange of ideas and
expertise on development activities in Asia and the Far East.

The DAP's core businesses include, among others, education, technical assistance,
consultancy, research and training. These are being underteken by the Graduate
School for Public and Development Management (GSPDM) for education and the
various operating centers, such as the Center for Knowledge Management (CKM),
Center for Quality and Competitiveness (CQC), Center for Sustainable and Human
Development (CSHD), Center for Govemnance (CFG), that hold offices in Pasig. A
center with similar activities is in operation in Davao City, the DAP sa Mindanao (DSM). -

in addition, the DAP Convention Center (DAPCC) which is located in Tagaytay City, is
being used as a seminar and training venue. it also offers lodging and dining facilities to
the public which generates additional income for the Academy.

The current administration is headed by President Antonio D. Kalaw while the policy-
making body is the Board of Trustees (BOT), composed of the following ex-officio
Members:

Chairman Caystano W, Paderanga, Jr - Office of the President
Vice Chalrman  Francisco T. Duque il - Civil Service Commission
Members Ramen JP. Paje - Department of Environment and
Natural Resources
Antonio D. Kalaw, Jr. - Development Academy of the
Philippines
Proceso J. Alcala - Department of Agriculture
Enrique T. Ona - Department of Heaith
Virgilio R. Delos Reyes - Department of Agrarian Reforms
Florencio B. Abad - Department of Budget and
Management
Cesar V. Purisima - Department of Finance
Arsenio M. Balisacan - National Economic and
Deavelopment Authority
Bro. Armin Luistro - Department of Education

For 2013, DAP had a total of 243 personnel complement composed of 48 regular
and 197 co-terminus employees. Its principal officers are as follows:

President - Attonfo D. Kalaw, Jr.
Sentor Vice President - Programs - Magdalena L. Mendoza




l Senior Vice President - Support Operations - Bemardo A. Dizon
Senior Vice President and Dean - GSPDM - Dr. Gloria J. Mercado
l Vice President-APO Liaison Officer - Carlos A. Sayco, Jr.
| Financial Profile
I Shown below are the comparetive financial position and financial performanca of
DAP for CY 2013 and CY 2012, as well as financial performance versus Corporate
Operating Budget (COB).
l Comparative Financial Position (in PhP)
l Increase
Particulars 2013 2012 Decrease
l Assets 634,274,989 578,542,294 55,732,695
Liabilities 352,268,619 297,777,280 54,482 329
Equity 282,005,370 280,765,004 1,240,366
Comparative Financial Performance (in PhP)
l Increase
Particulars 2013 2012 Decrease
l Gross Revenus 333,119,774 316,956,651 16,163,123
Subsidy Income-NG 97,575,178 54267 548 43,307.628
Total Operating 430,684,850 371,224,199 58,470,751
I income
Operating Expenses 426,583,467 368,571,732 58,011,735
I Net Income _4,111,483 2,652,467
Financial Performance vs. Corporate Operating Budget
l (in PhP)
Particulars Actual [0]:] Over{Under)
I Gross Profit 333,119,774 455,986,000 (122,866,226)
NG Support 97.575.176 120,300,000 (31.724.824)
l Total Operating Income 430,694,850 585,286,000 (154,591,050)
Operating Expenses 426,583,467 556,924,000  (130.340.533)
1 Net Income 4,111,483 28262000  (24,280,517)
Scope of Audit
l The audit covered the financial transactions and operations of DAP for CY 2013. The
audit invoived performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
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disclosures In the financial stotements. The procedures selected are hased on ﬁ)e
professional judgment of the auditor including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

State Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements

The Auditor rendered an unqualified opinion on the faimess of the presentation of the
financial statements of the DAP for the year 2013 with emphasis on a certain matter.

Summary of Audit Findings and Observations

Below is a summary of the audit findings and recommendations for CY 2013 as detailed
in Part Il A of the Report.

1. The implementation and utilization of the Disbursement Acceleration Program
(DAP) Fund granted to the Academy was audited and the following deficiencies
were noted:

14 The intention of the DAP to fast track public spending and push
economic growth had not been completely realized by the Academy
because as of December 31, 2013, out of the P165 million DAP fund,
R34.503 million or 20.91 per cent was unutilized and remained in the
custody of the Academy.

1.2 The Academy recognized a 15 per cent Management Fee from the
EDPSUCS’ R165 million projects even if the activities related therein
were not completed.

1.3 Expenses for foreign travels in the amount of P6.256 million were
incorrectly recorded in the account Training Expense (Workshop
and Conference) — Out-of-Pocket Cost (OPC).

1.4 Presidents of various SUCs and some officers of the Academy who
travelled to New Zealand from June 3 to 8, 2013 were granted
traveling allowance in excess of the allowable rate as provided
under EO 298.

1.5 In view of the foregoing, we recommended that Management undertake
the following:

a. Ensure the adherence of the program implementers to the specific
timalines of deliverables in accordance with the log frames drawn
up for the Program components, otherwise, consider retuming the
unspent money to BT,

b. Recognize the 15 per cent Management Fee (MF) in accordance
with the completed project Adjust the books accordingly by
reducing MF by B5.175 million and record the amount to Deferred
Credits;




2.

c. Adjust the accounts Training Expenses and Traveling —Foreign.
Take up the $86,255,855.78 as Traveling Expenses — Foreign
instead of Training Expenses — OPC; and

d. Require the respeclive SUC Presidents and officers of the
Academy to refund the excess traveling allowance they received.

The reported balance of the Land and Land Improvement account
amounting to R4,941,419.21 was not tairly presented because it included
the value of parcels of land, the legal ownership of which was not in the
name of the Academy. The annual real estate tax for the lots including the
DAP Building that stands thereon was not paid for the last 31 years, hence,
the risk of garnishment in lieu of the unpaid taxes exists.

21  The following measures or courses of actions were recommended:

a. Ad]ustmeamow\tofthelandsomatonlymelotmthenameofthe
Academy is reflected in the books. Until the issue on ownership of
the lots is resolved in favor of the Academy, it is appropriate that
the value of the three lots be deleted from the bocks; and

b. Avail of all legal remedies to resoive the ownership of the other
ihree lots where the DAP building is located to avoid possible
problem with unpaid reaity taxes and at the same time, protect the
assets of the Academy.

The Academy approved the granting of additional benefits to its
regular officers and employees in the form of CY 2011 Financial
Performance Award (FPA) in the total amount of R5,197,673.25
without legal basis. The benefit was released in December 2012.

Due to failure of Management to submit any document showing that the granted
FPA had authority from the DBM as required by RA 6758, the total amount of
R5,197 573.25 shall be disallowed in audit.

Despite the issuance of Notice of Disallowance on the CY 2004 FPA, the
Acatlemy obligated a liability of P7.277 million for the payment of the CY
2013 FPA to the officers and employees of the Academy without legal
basls, thereby overstating both the lability and expense accounts by the
same amount.

We recommendsd that payment of CY 2013 FPA to the Academy’s regular
oi:!cestr:d and employee be not pursued and the affected accounts be accordingly
adjusted.

The assets of the Academy were inadequately insured for the period
November 2, 2013 to November 2, 2014 as building renovations, equipment
and other assets in the amount of at least P83.565 million were not
included in the insurance coverage secured from the Government Service
Insurance System {GSIS).
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In compﬁancewimmamandreducelossesintheeventofme oceurrence of
the risks, it was recommended that Management secure adequate insurance
coverage for the Academy’s preperty. Coordinate with the authorized personnel
of the GSIS for the revaluation of the renovations of the DAP buildings for
insurance purposes. Submit the latest physical inventory of the contents of the
account Property, Plant and Equipment to update the insurance coverage
thereof.

g. The uncollected rent and other dues from various lessees of the DAP

amounted to at least P1.294 million as of CY 2013 as discussed below:

6.1 For the inability to implement the provisions of the Contract of
Lease, there were delays in the payment of rent of P819,249.47 and
the interest accruing thereon in the amount of £183,792.21 was not

, billed and collected from the lessees.

8.2 The Philippine Center for Environmental Protection and Sustainable
Development, Inc.,, (PCEPSDI) had not been paying rent to the
Academy. The unpald rent from CYs 2011 to 2013 amounted to
P804,6886.00.

6.3 A lessee was granted accommodations not enjoyed by other lessees
resulting to further reduction in rental income in the amount of
R276,124.80 and unpaid auxiliary services of 35,220 for CY 2013.

64  Invisw of the foregoing, it wes recommended thet Management:

a. Evaluate existing lease contracts; and
b. Collect the amount of R1,293,831.48 from the concemed lessees.

Status of Implementation of Prior Year's Recommendations

5 ~ Of the nine audit recommendations included in last year's Annual Audit Report,
two were implemented, were partially implemented and ﬂ}ee* were not
implemented. . z
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Republic of the Philippines
COMMISSION ON AUDIT
Commonwealth Avenue, Quezon City, Philippines

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Development Academy of the Philippines
DAP Building

San Miguel Avenue, Pasig City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Development Academy
of the Philippines, which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2013, and the
statement of income and expenses, statement of changes in equity and cash
flowstatementfor the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with State accounting principles, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboutwhether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or eror. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's intemal contrel. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policles used and thereasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
. provide a basis for our gudit epinion.




Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Development Academy of the Philippinesas of December 31,
2013, and its financial performance and its cash fiows for the year then ended in
accordance with State accounting principles.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 4.6 to the Financial
Statements. DAP is availing legal remedy to transfer the legal ownership of three parcels
of lot in the name of the Academy. In case the outcome should not be in favor to DAP,
its operation would be significantly affected. The property is remained recorded in the
books to strengthen the legal claim over said assets.

Report on Supplementary information Required Under
BIR Revenue Regulation 15-2010

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information on taxes, duties and
license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year described in Note 24 to the financial
statements is presented for the purposes of filing with the Bureau of Intema! Revenue
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary
information is the responsibilityof management. The information has been subjected to
auditing precedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

COMMISSION ON AUDIT

warissad G % miins

ol ing Auditor — Audit Group H
Cluster 8,Corporate Governmeant Sector

June 27, 2014




STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting
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DEVELOPMENT ACADEMY OF THE PHILIPPINES

BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2013
(With comresponding figures for 2012)
(in Philippine Peso}
2012
Nates 2013 (As restated)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4.2/5 21,243,423 27,884,753
Investments 4.5M0 61,000,000 166,000,000
Trade and other receivables - net 4,38 172,608,316 151,580,150
Inventories - net 4 A7 3,516,708 4,426,545
Prepald expenses 8 37,327,798 27,626,888
Qther current assets 9 1,014,846 2,275,334
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 207,609,089 408,803,650
Non-current Assets
Investments 4.5M10 155,007,000 7,000
Property and equipment - net 4611 180,993,030 168,215,741
Other non-cutrent assets 12 665,870 1,515,903
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 336,665,800 169,738,644
TOTAL ASSETS 834,274,989 £78,642,284
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liahilities
Payables 13 108,866,882 83,340,983
Inter-agency payables 14 0,832,426 9,369,330
Other payables 15 44 375,803 48,231,802
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 161,175,111 140,972,115
Non-current Liabilities
Deferred credits 16 156,646,191 128,762,408
Cther long-term liabilities 17 34,448,317 30,013,886
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 161,094,508 159,876,292
TOTAL LIABILITIES 352,269,619 300,648,407
EQUITY 282,005,370 277,893,887
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 634,274,989 §78,642,204

The notes on pages 8 to 22 form part of these financial statements.




DEVELOPMENT ACADEMY OF THE PHILIPPINES
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(With corresponding figures for 2012)
(In Philippine Peso)
Notes 2013 2012
INCOME
General income 41
Consultancy/research fees 266,637,473 218,754,885
Income from operation of regtaurants/carteenfeatertes 28,589,913 39,566,203
income from operation of dormitories/cottages 18,569,348 28,574,016
Rent income 8,616,872 8,204,367
Other service income 714,888 1,037,856
Miscellaneous incoms 2,406,516 2,964,880
GROSS INCOME 325,635,017 300,192,406
EXPENSES 4.1
Personal services 21
Salaries and wages 81,061,026 66,895,330
Other compensation 24,193,061 21,467,787
Personnel benefita contribution 14,061,577 8,149,891
Other perssnnel benefits 17,611,479 13,132,625
Total Personal Services 133,927,143 110,645,633
Maintenance and other operating expenses 2
Professional services 104,870,131 84,110,463
Supplies and materials expenses 40,592,496 43,197,723
Utility expenses 20,001,822 19,829,982
Training and scholarship expenses 53,748,171 45,016,254
Non-cash expenses 20,184,736 18,623,694
Travelling expenses 22,186,088 14,748,318
Repairs and maintenance expenses 6,485,092 7,239,744
Communication expenses 5,499,637 5,145,302
Rent expenses 4,214,160 4,297 A86
Advertising expenses 1,836,264 1,880,252
Taxes, insurance premiums and other fees 1,248,348 1,001,614
Extraordinary and miscellanscus expenses 469,488 307,006
Other maintenanse and other gperating expenses 14,319,892 12,340,264
Total Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses 292,656,324 257,926,088
TOTAL EXPENSES 426,583,467 368,571,732
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATION (101,048,450) {68,379,326)
Other income (expenses}
Interest income 7,306,288 17,620,519
Gain on forex/Loss on forex/Loss on asssis 353,744 (626,873)
Financial expenses {75,875) {20,401)
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE SUBSIDY (93,463,693) (54,615,081}
SUBSIDY FROM THE NATIONAL OTHER GOVERNMENT _23 97,675,176 54,267,548
NET INCOME 4,111,483 2,652,467

Tmmmmgesamzzwmpandm&mdalm.




DEVELOPMENT ACADEMY OF THE PHILIPPINES
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(With corresponding figures for 2012}

(In Philippine Peso)

2012
Notes 2013 (As restated)

GOVERNMENT EQUITY 18

Balance, beginning/end of the year 47,500,000 47,500,000
DONATED CAPITAL 19

Balance, beginning/end of the year 161,897,942 161,897,942
RETAINED EARNINGS 20

Balance, beginning of the year, as restated 68,495,945 65,843,478

Net income 4111,483 2,652,467

Balance, end of the year, as restated 72,607,428 68,405,945
EQUITY 282,005,370 277,893,887

The notes on pages 8 to 22 form part of these financial statements.




DEVELOPMENT ACADEMY OF THE PHILIPPINES
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(With corresponding figures for 2012)

{In Philippine Peso)

Notes 2013 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers 855,587,526 768,770,231
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (808,436,420) (664,617,312)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 47,151,106 104,152,919
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net proceeds from investments maturities 135,019,554 2,484,317

Placements in short-term investments 4510  (156,539,140) (87,659,488)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 1 (30,353,774)  (40,293,302)

Interest income 6,747,701 14,197,788

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (54,125,859) (111,290,685
UNREALIZED FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN (LOSS) 4.2 333,223 633,480
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (8,641,330) (7,771,246}
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 27,884,753 35,655,999
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END_OF Y_EAR_ 5 21,243,423 27,884,753

The notes on pages 8 to 22 form part of these financial statements.




DEVELOPMENT ACADEMY OF THE PHILIPPINES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in Philippine Peso unless otherwise stated)

1. CORPORATE CORPORATION

The Development Academy of the Philippines (DAP) was created by virtue of
Presidential Decree 205 dated June 7, 1973, amended by Presidential Decree 10681
on December 9, 1076 and Executive Order No. 288 signed on July 25, 1987. The
purposes of the Academy are.

a. to foster and support the developmental forces at work in the nation’s economy
through selective human resource development programs, research, data-
collection, and information services, to the end that optimization of wealth may be
achieved in a manner congruent with the maximization of public security and
welfare;

b. in line with the foregoing objective, to promote, carry on and conduct scientific,
interdisciplinary, and policy-oriented research, education, training, consuitancy,
and publication in the broad fields of economics, public administration, and the
political and social sciences generally, involving the study, determination,
interpretation and publication of economic, political and social facts and
principles bearing upon development problems of local, national or intemational
significance;

c. to discharge a regional role in initiating and catalyzing exchange of ideas and
expertise on development activities in the region of Asia and the Far East.

TheChaimtanoftheBoardomesmesofmeAeademyisﬂ’omtheOfﬁoeofme
President of the Philippines.

As at December 31, 2013, the Academy had the following number of employees:

2013
Regular 46
Co-Terminous 197

243

The registered office address of the Academy is DAP Building, San Miguel Avenue,

pasig City, Philippines. The academy’s businesses include technical assistance,

research and training. These are being performed mainly by the various operating

centers that hold offices in Pasig. Likewise, a center with similar activites is in

operatien in Davao City. The academy also has a conference center in Tagaytay City

tfggtni; being used as a seminar and training venue. It also offers lodging and dining
es.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The academy’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with State
accounting principles. The agency uses the chart of accounts prescribed under the




New Govemment Accounting System (NGAS) for Govemment-Owned and
Cantrolied Corporations (GOCCs) with minor modifications to suit the needs of the

agency.
3. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Balance Sheet and Statement of Income and Expenses include the overall
resources and results of operations of the academy’s core business, convention
center in Tagaytay City, DAP sa Mindanao, and facilities operation in Pasig City.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Revenue and Expense Recognition

The Academy uses the accrual basis of accounting wherein income and
expensesaremcognizedandmcordedinﬁe@ksofaccountsattheﬁmethey
are eamed and incurred.

The oparating revenues of the academy are sourced from providing technical
assistance, research and training, use of conference facilities, cafeteria services
and officeffacilities rental. The different income generating units of the agency
recognize income in the following manner.

Income from technical essistance, research and training is recognized when
billed and accrued based on the terms of the contract.

Use of Conference Facilities

Income from conference facilities arises mainly from room accommodation, use

of cottages and food served. Income from cash customers is recognized upon

rtaceiptbmi of payment, while income from non-cash customers is recognized upon
ng.

Cafeteria Services
Income is recognized when orders are served for walk-in clients and upon billing
for institutional reservations or functions.

Offive/Facilitios Rental
Revenue is recognized as eamed based on the terms of the lease contracts.

42 Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account includes peso and dellar savings and peso current deposit accounts
in PNB, LBP and UCPB. Bank accounts in dollars are converted to pesos using
the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) reference rate at year end.

Trust funds received from projects are deposited in a separate account with the
academy’s depository bank.

i
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4.3 Accounts Receivables

4.4

As

48

Accounts receivables are stated at face value less trade discounts granted, if
any. The academy periodically avaluates collectibiity of receivables and provides
allowance for probable losses. Prebable fosses on trade receivables are debited
as losses and charged against the results of operations and credited to
allowance for doubtful accounts. The basis of computing ailowance for doubtful
accounts is as follows:

Age Rate (in percent)
1-80 days 1
61-180 days 2
181 days-1 year 3
More than 1 year 5

Accounts determined as uncollectiblefworthless were endorsed to the
Commission on Audit (COA) for approval of the writing off the accounts.

Inventories

inventories consist of office supplies, medicines, food and beverages stored in
Pasig/Tagaytay City cafeterias. The agency uses the perpetual invertory system
in accounting for thesa items and racords inventories at cost less discounts
taken. Free items are also debited to the inventory account and credited to
income,

Perishable items such as meat and vegetables are charged directly to expense
and recorded upon preparation of vouchers.

The academy adopts the first-in first-out method of costing the issuance and
usage of all kinds of supplies.

in the event of obsolescence or impairment, the cost of inventories is written
down to its net realizable value by recognizing impairment losses and allowance
for chsolescencs.

Investments consist of investment in stocks and Special Deposit Accounts
(SDAs) which are recorded at face value.

SDAs, which normally have a term of 14-31 days, are classified as current assets
while treasury bonds, with terms ranging from two to three years, are classified
as non-curment assets.

Property and Equipment

Land and land improvements are stated at cost The title and ownership over
these properties were originally in the name of the agency. However, in 1982, the
Corperate Financial Institutions (CFls) comprising majority of the DAP Board of

10




Trustees incorporated the DAP Building Incorporated (DBI) and transferred the
ownership from DAP to DBl lts conveyance trom DBI back to DAP, the real
owner, is now in process in accordance with Govemment Service Insurance
System (GSIS) Board Resolution No. 194 dated May 29, 1892 and Office of
Govemment Corporate Counsel (OGCC) Opinion No. 247 dated March 25, 2005.

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributeble to the acquisition of the item
according to the capitalization benchmark prescribed by the Commission on
Audit. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method and assets are
depreciated over the following estimated useful lives:

Fixed Assets Estimated Life
(in years)

Building and Structures

DAP - Pasig 30

DAPCC - Tagaytay 30
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Audio-visual equipment 5

Air-conditioning equipment 10

Dormitary furniture and fixtures 10

Cafeteria furniture and equipment 10

Offiee furniture and fixtures 10

Carpets, rugs and curtains 5
[T equipment —~ computers 5
Library books 5
Motor vehicles 7
Machineries and equipment

Communications and power 10

Medical end dental 10
Other tools and equipment 5

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account is composed of cash in bank and cash in the hands of officers and
employees broken down as follows:

Particulars 2013 2012
Cash in Bank

Savings Account 3,685,819 10,603,678
Current Account 7,914,761 6,500,559
Peso Time Deposit 614,781 611,487
Dollar Account 7,568,964 8,948,360
Total 19,784,335 26,664,084

Cash with Officers and Employees
Collecting Officer 7,700 7,700
Disturbing Officer 692,435 397,404
Revolving Fund- Advances 748,853 815,565
1,449,088 4,220,669
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 21,243,423 27,884,753

1"



The amount also includes funds for the repairs and rehabilitation of DAP facilities
and Department of Agrarian Reform (DAR) - K Agrinet, Department of Agriculture
(DA) - Aurora E-Village, and Graduate Schooi of Public and Development
Management (GSPDM).

8. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES-NET

Particulars 2013 2012
(As
Restated)
Account Receivable 199,124,883 176,786,178
Due from Officers and Employees 199,642 1,120,511
Other Receivables 1,220,220 816,879
200,544,845 178,723,568
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (27,538,529) (27,133,418)

Trade and Other Receivables — Net 172,606,316 154,580,150

Accounts receivable pertains to trade receivables from various govemment agencies
and private entities arising from fees for technical, research and training services
rendered by the agency and from the use of conference facilities in Tagaytay City.

The amount of 818.616 million, representing 9.3 per cent of the account balance had
very low collection probability, hence, write-off of these accounts already endorsed to

COA for approval.
7. INVENTORIES -~ NET

Particulars 2013 2012
Office Supplies inventory 2,662,146 3,379,228
Food Supplies Inventory 620,245 633,659
Other Supplies Inventory 234,317 413,658
Total Inventories — Net 3,516,708 4,426,545

8. PREPAID EXPENSES

Particulars 2013 2012
Prepaid Expenses 580,673 678,762
Advances to Contractors 6,502,879 M. 5,182,475
Deferred Charges 29,084,755 21,668 405
Other Prepaid Expenses 259,488 97 226
Total Prepaid Expenses 37,327,796 27,626,868

12



This account represents prepayments made by the Academy for subscrip!ions to
newspapers and magazines, It also includes payment for insurance premiums to
GSIS, which are amortized, based on the insurance term.

Advances to contractors include 15 per cent mobilization fees for the one lot physical
repair and rehabilitation of facilites in Pasig and Tagaytay City. The advance
payment will be deducted from periodic progress payments to the contractor.

Deferred charges account consists of input Vat, Tax withheld for Corporate Income
Tax and Tax withhe!d for Output Tax.

Other prepald expenses account pertains to annuei membership fees paid to various
organizations.

. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

This account pertains to Guaranty Deposits made by the Academy for the issuance
of bidders’ parformance bonds.

10. INVESTMENTS

Current investments totaling R81 million are investments in Development Bank of the
Philippines (DBP) Special Savings Account and Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP)

High Yielding Savings Account with terms ranging from 14-31 days.

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET

Details of the account are as follows:

Land and Arts, PPE Office, IT Other Mator Total

Building/ Arche- Held and Com- | Equipment | Vehicles

Constructio | ological & | indrust | munieution

nin Others Equipment

Progress
Cost
Balance, 163,043,070 | 1,453,360 - | 44815671 | 32,380,584 | 18,417,780 | 260,980,484
January 1,
2013
Restatement - - - - - - -
;lg!l. 2.:lan 1, 163,043,079 | 1,453,360 - | 44815871 | 32,360,584 | 18,417,780 | 260,860,484

a8

resteted
Additions 24,4490 050 ~| 33835| 5,336,974 2,386,884 - | 32,188,723
Disposals - - - (117,517 | {125,173) - (242,680
Adjustments 1,666,228 - - 760,473 338872 | (47954)| 2,754618
Balance, 180,088,357 | 1,453,360 | 33,635 | 50,804,601 | 34,930,147 | 18,360,836 ) 265,689,138
December 31,
2013
Less:
Accumulated
Depreciation
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Landand | Arts, PPE | Office,IT | Ofther Motar| Total

Building/ Arche- Held and Com- | Equipment | Vehicles

Constructio | ological & | Intrust | munication

nin Others Equipment
Balanes, 55,808,588 - 17.620,324 | 10,222,750 | 9,116,071 | 82774743
January 1, .
2013
Restatement - - - - - - -
Bal. Jan. 1, 55,806,558 - - 17628324 | 10,222,750 | 9,116,071 02,774,743 |
2012, a8
restated L _ _
Addftionals 10,656,704 - | 4841381 2,567,885 1,617,075 19,383,055
Disposals - - -1 (105,765) | (115,331) -1 (221,089
Adjustments 1,696,226 - . 766,704 | 326,600 | (30,287) | 2,758,404
Batance, 68,050,530 . T 22,631,734 | 13,601,883 | 10,702,859 | 114,885,108
Desember 31,
2013
Net Book
Value
Becember 122,028,827 | 1,453,380 | 33,835 | 27,812,807 | 21,837,184 | 7,686,977 | 180,983,030
31,2013 . |
December 108,138,481 | 1,453,360 - | 27,186,347 | 22,137,834 | 8,301,719 | 168,215,741
31, 2012

12. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

The camying amount of property, plant and equipment that have become
unserviceable are reclassified to other assets account. When these assets are
disposed, the carrying amount lodged in the cther assets account is derecognized
and a gain or loss from disposed assets is recognized.

13. PAYABLES

This account consists of the following:

Particulars 2013 2012
(As restated)
Accounts Payable 104,883,039 80,973,357
Due to Officers and Employees 2,083,843 2,387,626-
Total Payahles 106,968,882

83,340,983

Accounts Payables account pertains to obligations to suppiiers arising from trade.
Accounts payable has been restated by 82,871,117 due to Prior Years’ adjustment

Due to Officers and Employees account includes unclaimed salaries and other
benefits of separated and existing DAP employees.
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14. INTER-AGENCY PAYABLES

Particulars 2013 2012
Due to GSIS 1,865,875 (17,017)
Due to Pag-ibig 157,636 (2,592)
Due to Philhealth 174,420 16,820
Due to BIR 6,007,182 4,270,930
Due to Other NGA’s 1,537,313 5,131,189
Total Inter-agency Payables 9,832,426 9,389,330

Due to GOCCs account consists mainly of withholding taxes and premiums deducted
from employees and employer's share for remittance to GSIS, Philheaith and Pag-
IBIG.

Due to Other NGAs account is made up of K-Agrinet and Aurora E-Village Project
funds under the temporary custodianship of the Academy. These funds will be
eventually transferred to partners.

15, OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of the following:

Particulars 2013 2012
Guaranty Deposits Payable 2,716,978 10,175,391
Performance Bonds / Bidders Bond 5,283,240 1,771,828
Other Payables 38,375,585 36,284,583
Totaj Other Payables 44,375,803 48,231,802

Guaranty Deposits Payables consist of 10 per cant retention fee due to contractors
which are currently retained by the agency and rental deposits for DAP’s leasing
operations.

Other Payables refer to the peso amount of accumulated leave credits of resigned
and retired employees totaling P4.5 million which is expected to be paid within the
next 12 months and miscellaneous trust fiabilities in the custody of the agency for
specific projects like GSPDM and Asian Productivity Organization (APQ).

16. DEFERRED CREDITS

Particulars 2013 2012
Deferred Credits- 15 percent Breakages 2,924,468 2,942,804
Deferred Credits to Income 123,401,623 05,206,623
Provision for Output Tax- Year 2003 onwards 15,579,782 15,782,569
Provision for Output Tax- Year 2002 below 14,740,320 14,740,320
Total Deferred Credits 156,846,181 128,762,406
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Provision for output tax for year 2003 onwards consists mainly of 12 per cent output
value added tax (VAT) provided on trade receivables based on bills sent to clients
for consultancy services, use of conference facilities, cafeteria and lease operations
of the Academy. The remittance of these items to BIR is withheld pending collection
of such receivables.

Provision for cutput tax for CY 2002 and below pertains to accounts receivables that
have been considered either as worthless or doubtful of collection. The agency has
the intention of writing-off these accounts once the write-off for the corresponding
receivebles is approved.

17. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The account balance represents the peso equivalent of accumulated leave credits of
regular employees of the Academy computed by multiplying the total accumulated
leave credits by the cument rate. This account is adjusted annually in order to
present the current value.

18. GOVERNMENT EQUITY

This account consists of contributions by the founding institutions of the Academy to
the endowment fund which was created by virtue of Presidential Decree No. 205
dated December 8, 1976 for the purpose of attaining self-support capability for the
Academy and to be administered as a trust with the board of trustees of the
Academy as trustee. These institutions are the Land Bank of the Philippines, the
Govemment Service Insurance System, the then Central Bank of the Philippines
(now Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas), the Philippine National Bank and the Social

Security System, with the following contribution:

{nstitution Contribution
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 8,500,000
Land Bank of the Philippines 9,500,000
Govemnment Service Insurance System 9,800,000
Philippine Nationat Bank 9,500,000
Social Security System 8,500,000
Total Govemment Equity 47,500,00

19. DONATED CAPITAL

This account includes donations from the National Government through the Office of
the President (OP). The said amount is to remain unimpaired and shall be retumed
to the contributor/donor in the event of the dissolution of the Academy. Part of the
amount, or P10 million, is earmarked for the rehabilitation of DAP facilities for the
Graduate Schoo! of Public and Development Management (GSPDM).

Additional amount totaling P115 million was granted to the Academy by the National

Govemment pursuant to the General Appropriations Act for calendar years (CYs)
2005 to 2009.
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it also consists of donations from the Developm
land, buildings and equipment that make up the
City; the transfer of the assets and liabilities of the Center for Conference Model
Development (CCMD), an instrumentality
Education (FAPE), to the Academy by virtu

April 25, 1885; and amounts from other donors, summarized as follows:

Particulars 2013 2012
Donations from the Nationai Government
Office of the President 20,000,000 20,000,000
General Appropriations Act CY 2005 50,000,000 50,000,000
General Appropriations Act CY 2006 35,000,000 35,000,000
General Appropriations Act CY 2007 10,000,000 10,000,000
General Appropriations Act CY 2008 10,000,000 410,000,000
General Appropriations Act CY 2009 10,000,000 10,000,000
Development Bank of the Philippines 16,788,579 16,788,578
CCMD/FAPE 8,700,000 8,700,000
Various Donors 1,409,363 1,409,363
Total Donated Capital 161,897,942 161,897,942

20. RETAINED EARNINGS

ent Bank of the Philippines in 1974 of
DAP Conference Center in Tagaytay

of the Fund for Assistance to Private
e of Letter of instruction No. 1457 dated

In accordance with Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) No. 8, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, the Retained eamings beginning
balance of calendar year 2012 was restated as reported in the Annual Audit Report
2012 in the amount of £68,714,595 as follows:

Reteained Eamings, January 1, 2012, unrestated 68,714,585

Adjustments:

Rgron; n?ocommodation and meal charges for the CeC Management (317,117)
raining

2012 Performance-based bonus of DAP regular employees (2,554,000)

Retained earnings, January 1, 2012, as restated 65,843,478
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21. PERSONAL SERVICES

The following schedule shows the breakdown of Personal Services expense.

Particulars

Salaries and Wages
Salaries and Wages — co-ferminous
Salaries and wages — regular
Total

Other Compensation
Year-end bonus
Personne! economic refief allowance
Honoraria
Representation allowance
Transportation allowance
Cash gift
QOvertime and night pay
Clothing and uniform allowance
Longevity pay
Productivity incentive allowance
Total

Personnel Benefits Contribution
Life and retirement insurance contributions
PhilHeglth contributions
Pag-1BIG contributions

ECC contribution
Total
Other Personnel Benefits
Terminal leave benefits
Other personne! benefits
Total

Total Persong] Services

2013 2012
56,602,051 44,449,277
24,458,975 22 446,053
81,081,026 66,895,330

7,079,881 5,725,942

5,680,455 4,933,182

2,372,870 3,022,498

3,382,375 2,745,832

2,065,738 1,717,614

1,234,875 1,020,375

706,867 990,000
1,040,000 763,344
140,000 304,000
490,000 155,000
24,193,061 21,467,787
9,849,205 8,178,545
027,082 684,738
284,300 248,700

. 39,910

11,061,577 9,149,891

9,619,117 8,148,838

7,002,352 4,082,787
17,611,479 13,132,625

133,927,143 110,645,625
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22. MAINTENANCE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (MOOE)

The following schedule shows the breakdown of the MOOE:

Particulars

Professional Services
Consuitancy services
Security services
Auditing services
Other professional services
Environment/sanitary services
Total

Supplies and Materials expenses
Food supplies expenses
Office supplies expense
Maintenance, materials and supplies
Fuel, oll and lubricants expenses
Drugs and medicines expenses
Other supplies expanses

Total
Utility expenses
Electricity expenses
Water expenses
Cooking gas expenses
Total
Training and Scholarship expenses
Training expenses
Scholarship expenses
Total

Non-cash expenses
Bad debts expenses

Depreciation - office building
Depreciation- office/iT/Medical and dental
equipment

Depreciation - furniture and fixtures
Depreciation — motor vehicles
Depraciation — library books

Total

Traveling expenses

Repairs and Maintenance expenses
Office building
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Fumiture and fixtures
Total

2013 2012
92,863,425 66,314,885
5,169,946 4,962,290
3,425,688 5,213,035
246,667 7,455,848
164,405 184,405
101,870,131 84,110,463
25,383,157 25,472,264
9,524,315 9,670,827
1,089,808 3,700,003
3,584,082 3,368,272
78,445 84,086
952,679 802,171
40,592,498 43,197,723
17,743,045 17,435,446
1,162,633 1,216,669
1,096,144 1,177,887
20,001,822 19,828,882
53,391,406 42,833,432
356,765 2,182,822
53,748,171 45,016,254
805,111 204,509
10,556,704 11,025,772
5,027,898 4,288,600
2,052,903 1,996,582
1,617,075 1,030,831
125,044 77,300
20,184,736 18,623,694
22,186,089 14,746,318
3,287,404 3,078,844
1,237,827 834,142
347,950 86,583
1,611,821 3,239,162
6,485,092 7,239,741
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Communication expenses
Telephone expense - landline
Telephone expense — mobile
Intemet expenses
Cable, satellite, telegraph & radio expenses- T1C
Postage and deliveries
Membership dues and contributions to
organization
Total
Rent expenses
Advertising expenses
Advertising expenses
Printing, binding and reproduction expenses
Subscription expenses
Transportation and delivery expenses
Promotion and marketing expenses

Totzl
Taxes, Insurance premiums and Other fees

Insurance expenses

Taxes, duties and licenses
Fidelity bond premiums

Total
Extraordinary and Miscellaneous expenses
Other MOOE
Total MOOE

23. SUBSIDY FROM THE NATIONAL GOVERNMENT
This account pertains to the following:

Particulars

Authorize under the General/ Appropriations Act
Support to the Productivity Development Center-
Cash received from the Department of Foreign
Affairs representing allotment Fund for the
support of Academy’s Productivity Development
Center implementing projects approved by the
Asian Productivity Organization.

Support for DAP operations and repairs/
rehabilitation of DAP facilities.

Totals

2,619,823 2621,073
1,519,895 1,352,121
920,301 698,961
196,635 235,437
188,664 185,346
54,319 52,364
5,409,637 5,145,302
4,214,160 4,297,486
341,148 719,041
518,827 1,001,387
86,564 133,183
32,509 7,039
857,218 119,802
1,836,264 1,980,525
1,015,892 887,484
187,530 140,273
44,926 63,857
1,248,348 1,001,614
469,486 307,008
14,319,892 12,340,264
202,656,324 257,926,089

2013 2012
9,300,000 9,300,000
88,275,176 44,967 548
97,575,176 54,267,548
20



24, REPORT ON THE SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BIR

UNDER REVENUE REGULATION NO. 15-2010

On tha November 25, 2010, the BIR issued Revenue Regulations (RR) No. :15-2010
prescribing the manner of compliance in connecticn with the preparation and
submission of financial statement accompanying the tax retums. Under the said RR,

it is required that, in addition to the disclosures mandated under the Philippine

Financial Reporting Standards, and such other standards and/or conventions as may
be adopted, the Notes shall include information on taxes, duties and license fees

paid or accrued during the texable year.

In compliance with the requirements set forth by RR 158-2010, the information on
taxes, duties and licenses paid or accrued during the taxable year as follows:

241  Value Added Tax (VAT)

2013 2012

Vatable Sales/Receipts of Services - Private 27,081,889 39,615,121
Sale to Govemment 109,805,724 128,438,015
Zero to Government -
Exempt Sales/Receipts -
Total Seles/Receipts (Total Vatable Gross 136,887,613 168,051, 136
Receipts)
Multiply by: Tax rate 12% 12%
Total Output VAT for the year 16,426,514 20,166,138
Allowable input Tax 20,691,495 2,549,518

input Tax Carried Over from Previous Period 20,368,152 2,204,030

Input Tax Deferred on Capital Goods Exceeding

R1Million from Previous Quarter 323,343 345,488
Current Year's Domestic Purchases of. 14,551,776 14,773,022

Goods Other than Capital Goods 3,742,401 4,138,373

Services 10,809,375 10,633,649
Total Available Input Tax 35,243,271 17,322,539
Tax Credits/Payments

Monthly VAT Payments — previous two months 1,899,491

Creditable Value-Added Tax Withheld 4,871,434 5,458,156
Total Tax Credits/Payments 4,871,434 7,357,647
Tote! Output VAT for the year 16,426,514 20,166,136
Total Available Input Tax 35,243 271 17,322,539
Total Tax Credits/Payments 4,871,434 7,357,647
Monthly VAT Payments — 1% Quarter 1,400,524



Monthly VAT Payments - 2 Quarter 1,145,078
Prior Quarter Credit Forwarded — 1% Quarter (4,289,050) -
Prior Quarter Credit Forwarded - 2™ Quarter {5,558,886) -
Prior Quarter Credit Forwarded ~ 3° Quarter (5,664,594) (2,204,030)

Total Amount Payable (Overpayment) For The Year _ (8,175,662) (4,855,623)

24.2 Excise Taxes

There are no transactions subject to excise taxes for the years ended December
31, 2012 and 2013.

24.3 Other taxes, local and national

This accounts consists of taxes and licenses paid for the years ended December
31, 2013 and 2012 as follows:

2013 2012

Under Taxes, Insurance Premiums and other Fees:
20% Final tax on Interest income on Investment 1,826,747 4,405,130

and bank deposit
Insurance Premium on Property Plant and Eqpt. 1,015,892 887,484
Taxes on Property 119,573 9,745
Premiums on bonds 44,926 63,857
Business Permits and Licenses 53,100 68,000
Totals 3,060,238 5,434,218
24 4 Withholding Taxes
The Company's withholding taxes for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012 are as follows:
. Withholding tax on compensations
2013 2012
Total withheld tax for the year 13,198,876 10,496,273
Less:Payments made from January to November _ 12,130,626 9,655,078
Withholding Tax still due and payable 1,068,251 840,295
Il. Expanded withholding tax
2013 2012
Total withheld tax for the year 12,450,841 9,859,561
Less:Payments made from January to November _ 10,828,102 9,012,723
Withholding Tax still due and payable 1,622,539 946,838
ill. Final tax withheld (G.M.P.}
2013 2012
Total withheld tax for the year 6,803,784 6,830,611
Less:Payments made from January to November _ 5,898,339 6,185,516
Withholding Tax still due and payable 904,454 645,095
2
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AUDIT OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Our audit of the Disbursement Acceleration Program (DAP) Fund disclosed the following
deficiencies:

11

The Intention of the DAP to fast track public spending and push economic
growth had not been completely realized by the Academy because as of
December 31, 2013, out of the #1685 million DAP fund, R34.503 million or
20.91 per cent was unutilized and remained in the custody of the Academy.

1.1.1

112

1.1.3

1.1.4

The Academy was a recipient of R165 million taken from DAP. The
Special Allotment Release Order (SARQ) stated that the fund was for the
implementation of the Executive Development Program - Training of
State Universities and Colleges, President/Executive Training of SUCs
Officials to be jointly implemented by the Development Academy of the
Philippines and the Commission on Higher Education.

In view of this, the Academy entered into a Memorandum of Agreement
(MOA) with the Commission on Higher Education (CHED). Among others,
the MOA recognized the need to enhance the capability of the public
higher education institution fo strengthen the key leadership and
management capabilities of senior executives and middle managers of
state universities and colleges (SUCs) all over the country. Conseguentiy,
the Executive Development Program for State Universities and Colleges
(EDPSUCs) came into being. Aside from the date of the notarization of
January 2, 2012, no other date was specified in the MOA. Since the
project was jointly implemented by the Academy and CHED, a Steering
Committee was created consisting of the following:

a. President of the Academy

b. Chairperson of CHED

c. Three Representatives from Philippine Assodiation of Stete
Universities and Colleges (PASUC)

A Work and Financial Plan (WFP) for a one-year activity commencing in
January 2012 was prepared but the first tranche of R83,689,500 was
released on June 29, 2012 and the remaining 871,310,500 was released
on May 30, 2013.

As of December 31, 2013, out of 185 million DAP funds, R34.503 million
was still in the possession of the Academy indicating there were activities
of the program awaiting completion. The Academy reported that the




amount of R130.406 million comprising 79.09 per cent of the fund was
utilized as follows:

Particulars Amount %
Training Expense (Workshop and Conference}-OPC [R 58,214,088.64 44,61
Management Fee 24,750,000.00 18.97
Consultants and Specialists Fees 20,457,617.52 15.68
Traveling Expense 17,780,005.99 13.63
Others 9,284 955.98 7.11
Total # 130,496,668.13 100.00

1.1.5 Section Vil. Program/Program Qutputs/Deliverables and Timeliness of the

116

1.4.7

CHED Memorandum No. 9, series of 2012 states that all programs and
project funds for the DAP shall be disbursed within the period provided for
each Program component, such that expected outputs and deliverables in
the program components shall be completed, submitted and reported to
the Steering Committee within the timelines set by concemned entities of
the government in accordance with the usual accounting and audit

regulations.

Following the WFP, the activites of the program should have been
completed over a pericd of one year, i.e., January to December 2012.
Considering that the fund was partially released on June 29, 2012 and the
program started in July 2012; and censidering further that the remaining
71,310,500 was released on May 30, 2013, it was not possible to comply
with the timeline set by the WFP. Nonetheless, after one year and seven
months after the release of the last tranche, all the activities related thereto
should have been concluded by December 31, 2013. Howaver, as of the
end of 2013 or two years after the EDPSUC was created, 834,503,331.87
of the fund remained unutilized.

The unfinished activities and the unutilized fund as of the end of 2013 were
indications that the EDPSUCs project to support the DAP objective of fast
track spending and push economic growth was not totally attained. Among
the activities that are not yet completed as of December 31, 2013 included
the following: Higher Education Development and Leadership Institute
(HEDLI), PASUC Convention, Workshop Asset Management, Workshop
on SUCs Indicaters, Career System and Project Administration.
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1.2

1.3

The Academy recognized a 15 per cent Management Fee (MF) from the
EDPSUCs’ R165 million projects even if the activities related therein were

not completed.

1.2

122

It was noted that the Academy charged the full amount of Management
Fee (MF)} in the amount of §24,750,000 to DAP funds which was
equivalent to 15 per cent of R165 million, despite the expected output and
deliverables of the EDPSUCs project were not completed. Recognition of
the MF should be on the basis of completed activities and not on the total
released fund of R185 million.

The MF for the remaining B34.503 million or R6.175 million (15 per cent
of R34.503) should have not been recognized as income. it was more
appropriate to accrue the MF if the income was expected to be realized
within the next accounting period, i.e., within 2014.

Expenses for forelgn travels in the amount of B6.256 million were
incorrectly recorded in the account Training Expense {Workshop and
Conferencs) — Qut-of-Pocket Cost (OPC).

131

132

COA Circular 2013-002 dated states that:

“Traveling Expenses-Foreign account is used to record costs incurred in
the movementiransport of government officers and employees outside
the country. This includes transportation, travel per diems, passports and
visa processing and other related expenses.”

In the review of disbursements related o the project EDPSUCs, it was
chserved that several expenses for foreign travels were incorrectly
recorded as Training Expense — OPC. The foreign travels are
summatrized below and in the next page:

JEV Payee/Natu
Referance m” of | Destination | Period | Amount
. ! of travel

13050282 | El Bxito Travel and Tours | Singapore and | 4/1410

 airtero Thaland  |20p0ta | © 2085800
3060006 | Tripmar Travel Agsncy- | Austala | 5710

airfare - 2502013 447,185.10
5060883 | ) Exiio Travel and Towrs | New Zealand | 63 o

— airtare app1z | 2785000
3061577 | L Cortos —perdiems | New Zealand | 6210

23 pan) o 1,188,211.25

]




13101270 | El Exito Travel and Tours a2 to
~ Alr fare and hote! 28,2013 1,258,193.00
accommodation

1311-1557 | El Exito Travel and Tours 11-10to
~ Alr fate and hotel 162013 1.000,675.43
accommodation (13 pax}

13-12-2683 | E! Exito Travel and Tours 21 to
~ Alr fare and hotel 282013 724,015.00
accommodation

Totel R 8,265,655.78

133 Although Traveling and Training are both expense accounts, the use of
the correct classification of account was necessary for proper evaluation
and appreciation of the stakeholders. In the instant case, had the
accounts been correctly adjusted, the expenses for Foreign Travels would
almost equal to Management Fee in terms of fund utilization. The
adjusted fund utilization would be as follows:

Particulars Amount %
Training Expense (Workshop and Conference)- OPG R 51,858.432.88 30.81
Management Fee 24,750,000.00 18.07
[ Travelling Expense 24,025811.77 18.43
Consultants and Speclalists Fees 20,451,617.52 15,68
Others 6,284,855.98 741
Tetal 130,496,618.13 100.00

14 Presidents of various SUCs and some officers of the Academy who
travelled to New Zealand from June 3 to 8, 2013 were granted traveling
allowance in excess of the allowable rate as provided under EO 298,

1.41 On May 18, 2013, the President of the Academy issued travel authority to
each of the thres officers of the Academy and each President of the 20
SUCs for an academic foreign travel to New Zealand frem June 3 1o 8,
2013. The 23 offices had similar itinerary of travel and each of them
received travel allowance of $1,227.60 computed as follows:

Time Means of Teaveling
Date Piaces to be visited Transpex- Allowznce
Departire Arrival tation

June 3 DAP to Manfla Alrport 820 PM 820 P DAP gar $ 148.80
dime 3 NAA | - nchaon, Keraa 12230 AM 5:10 AM Plané 186.00
Inoheon Karen ~ New Zealand 4550 PM 740 AM Plane 188.00
June 4.7 New Zaaiand 553.00
GamoB | NowZesiad-lochoon, Kaea | gagam | 1100PM Piene 14859
Total $1.227.60




142 Pertinent sections of Executive Order (EO) No. 298 dated March 23, 2004
further amending EO 248 states the following:

SEC. 8. - The first (1% ) paragraph of Section 12 of the EO is hereby
amended to read as follows:

sSection 12. Allowable Travel Expenses. Goverment personnel who travel
abroad shall be entifled to the Daily Subsistence Allowance (DSA) as
provided under the United National Development Program (UNDP) Index,
which can be secured from the Depariment of Foreign Affairs. The DSA shall
be apportioned as follows unless ctherwise stated in the UNDP Index: (&)
fifty percent (50%) for hotel/lodging; (b) thirty percent {30%) for meals; and
(©) twenty percent (20%) for incidental expenses. When the country of
destination is net listed in the said Index, the DSA for the nearest country
shall be adopted.”

SEC. 10 — The fourth (4%) paragraph of Section 12 of the EQ is hereby
amended to read as follows:

=ntillement to DSA shall start only upon arrival at the country of destination
and shall cease upon departure therefrom at the following percentage:

Arival not later than 12:00 noon 100 Hotelflodging (50%); meals (30%)
and incidental expenses (20%)
Arrival after 12:00 noon 80 Hotellodging (50%); dinner (10%)
and incidenta) expenses (20%)
Departure before 12:00 noon K Breakfast (10%) and incidental
expenses (20%)

Departure at 12:00 noon and 40 Breakfast (10%), [unch (10%) and
later incidental expenses (20%

143 Audit disclosed that only 50 per cent of the travelling allowance, which
was 30 per cent for meals and 20 per cent for incidental expenses, was
granted to the officers; the other 50 per cent earmarked for hotel/lodging
accommodation was consignad to a travel agency. However, it was noted
that the UNDP rate used for this trave! was not in accordance with the
rate specified in the DSA Circular Report applicable for June 2013. The
DSA Circular showed that the rate for Auckiand, New Zealand was $358
but the Acedemy applied $372 in the computation of the travelling
allowance.

l Particular % To Cover




1.4.4 Further, the itinerary of trave! showed that the officers left Manila on June
3, 2013 at 12:30 AM. Despite the amended provision of Section 10,
stating that DSA shall only start upon arrival at the country of destination,
prior to their departure (June 2), each of the 23 officers was granted
$148.80 or 40 per cent of $372 even if they were still in Mantla.

145 On June 8, the team left New Zealand at 8:45 AM. The EQ provided that
departure from the country of destination before 12:00 noon, only 30 per
cent (breakfast 10percentandincidemalexpensesof20percem) of the
authorized DSA shall be granted. The participants, however, received 40
per cent of the $372 when the comect amount should have been 30 per
cent of $358.

148 The afore-cited circumstances showed that the traveling allowances
received by the 20 SUC Presidents and the three officers of the Academy
were in excess of the allowable rates prescribed by EO 208. The excess
travel allowance received by each of the 23 officers is computed as

follows:
AchmiDSA | Shouldbe | Excess
Date Particulars | o oived.$372 | DSA-$358 | DSA
Tuned | 40% of$372 §  148.60 5 - $ 146.80
June 3-7 | §0% DSA - 5 days 930.00 865.00 35.00
Tune8 | 40% of § 372 148.80 107.40 4140
Total $ 1,227.60 $ 100240 | § 2520

147 The excess travelling allowance received by the 23 officers amounted to
$5,179.80 ($225.20 x 23). At the time of liquidation, the exchange rate
used was B42.44 to a $1, hence, the amount in peso was equivalent to
R210,822.22. This amount should be returned to the DAP fund in the
custody of the Academy.

15  In view of the foregoing, we recommended that Management undertake the
following:

a, Ensure the adherence of the program implementers to the specific
timelines of deliverables in accordance with the log frames drawn up for
the Program components, otherwise, consider retuming the unspent
money to the BTr,

b. Recognize the 15 per cent Management Fee (MF) in accordance with the
completed project. Adjust the books accordingly by reducing MF by
R5.175 million and record the amount under Deferred Credits;
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Adjust the accounts Training Expenses and Traveling —Foreign. Take up
the £6,255,655.78 as Traveling Expenses — Foreign instead of Training
Expenses — OPC; and

Require the respective SUC Presidents and officers of the Academy to
refund the excess traveling allowance they received.

Management response and action on the foregoing observations and
recommendations are as follows:

a.

A Steering Committee composed of officers from CHED, DAP and
PASUC was created for the proper and efficient managing of the work
and Financial Plan (WFP) developed for the program. Several revisions
and new activittes were added to the WFP. Due to the lengthened
discussion on the curmiculum and curriculum changes, three EDPS
Programs were only completed in 2013 while for two other courses, the
completion date of these courses was pushed to 2014.

The Academy had been closely coordinating with CHED on how to fast
track the program implementation. Decisions affecting the program
contents/substance were referred either to the Steering or Management
Committee to ensure that the program funds are adequately and
reasonably spent to mest the stated ends of the EDPS.

The recommendation has been fully noted and would be implemented.

The 2013 books will no longer be adjusted since the accounts involved
were both expense accounts, however, in the preparation of the report on
the actual utiization of EDPS funds. it was also steted in the reply that
hotel accommodations were expenses directly associated in
implementing an activity directly linked to a project and therefore should
not be treated as “Traveling Expense’. Thus, the Academy will only adjust
the total armount of R1.922 million from Training Expenses (Workshop
and Conferences) to Traveling Expenses.

/Re]oinder.' The hote! accommodations were incurred by virtue of issued

travel authorities where the granting of per diem or daily subsistence
allowance (DSA) is allowed. Per diem/DSA consists of meals, lodging
(hote! accommodation) and other incidental expenses related 1o the
travel. In the instant case, the hote! accommodation corresponded to the
lodging component of the DSA, hence, should be treated as traveling
expense. The amount that could be treated as training expense would be
the amount spent for seminar or conference fea.




d. The Academy would inform the concemed individuals to refund certain
amounts in accordance with the provisions of EO 208, Journal Entry
Voucher No. 14-07-0319 was prepared establishing the receivables from
the concemed officers/employees and various SUC Presidents.

The reported balance of the Land and Land Improvement account in the amount of
P4,941,419.21 was not fairly presented because it included the value of parcels of
land, the legal ownership of which was not in the name of the Academy.

21 The Land and Land Improvement account of DAP as of December 31, 2013
showed the following details;

Location/Particular Amount
Pasig 2 3,080,000.00
Tagaytay 820,600.00
Cebu 5,380.00
Land improvement 1,025,439.21
Total R 4,041,419.21

22 Inthe audit of assets, the ownership of the assets should be ascertained and the
agreement to the records should be determined. This is stated in Section 58 of
PD. 1445, to wit:

spudit of Assets. The examination and audit of assets shall be
performed with a view to ascertaining their existing ownership,
valuation and encumbrances as well as the propriety of items
composing the respective asset accounts, determining their
agreement with records, proving the accuracy of such record;
ascertaining if the assets were utilized economically, efficiently and
effectively; and evaluating the adequacy of controls over the
aceounts.”

2.3 The purchase price of the land, in which the DAP Building stands was sourced
from the equity fund set up by the following founding institutions, namely,
Central Bank of the Philippines, the National Economic And Development
Authority, Development Bank of the Philippines, the Govemnment Service
Insurance System, the Social Security System, and Philippine National Bank.
These institutions entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) dated May
11, 1973 to initially finance the oparations of the Academy.

24  From the equity, the Academy purchased a parcel of land consisting of four
adjoining lots from Ortigas & Company, Limited Partnership (OCLP). Upon
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completion of the sale, the four lots described as lots 8, 8, 10 & 11 were all titled
in the name of the DAP. Each lot has an area of 1,030 sqm and had separate
wransfer certificates of tite (TCT); TCT Nos. 32171, 32172, 32173 and 32174,

respectively.

Further review of the documents disclosed that in 1982, the Corporate Financial
Institution (CFls) comprising majority of the DAP Board of Trustees, incorporated
the DAP Building Incorporated (DBI) with the purpose of consolidating the
ownership of the property of DAP. The organization was registered with the
Securittes and Exchange Commission (SEC) and thereafter becams non-
operational. Currently, only TCT No. 32171 for lot 8 is in the name of DAP; it is
where the Academy’s basketball court is located. The diagram pelow shows the
flow of ownership of the four lots:

TCT3AUN TCT 32171
{int8)-DAP | ————»| {lnt8}-DAP
1,030sqm 1,030 sam
TCT N TCT 56453
(10t9)-0AP | —— | {io29}-DBI
{Lots 8,9, 10, 11} -
DAP 4,120 sqm
TCTINTS TCT 56454
(lot10).0ap | —— | (10110)-DBI
1,030 sam 1,030 sqm
TCTAZ1M TCT 56455
{Lot 11 ~DAP | fot11-o8t
1,030 sqm 1,030 sqm

The three lots with a combined area of 3,080 sqm, more or less, were titied
individually in the name of DBI. i.e., TCT numbers 58453, 56454 and 56455,
Unfortunately, these are the lots where the DAP building stands and this puts
DAP in a disadvantageous position. Audit observations on the ownership of the
DAP property were already raised as early as 1987, but to this date, the audit
recommendation refative thereto remained unimptemented.

The annual real estate tax for the lots including the DAP Building that
stands thereon was not paid for the last 31 years, hence, the risk of
garnishment in lieu of the unpald taxes exists.

271 It was also verified that DAP has not been paying the annuaj real estate
tax because of tax exemption provided in Section 12 of Presidential
Decree No. 205 which states that:




28

2.9

»  The Academy, its assefs, acquisitions, income, and its
operations and transactions shall be exempt from any and all
taxes, charges, imposts, license and assessments, direct or
indirect, impost by the Republic of the Philippines or any of its
agengcies or instrumentalities, as the Board of Trustee may
determine.”

272 This situation appeared to compound the existing problem on ownership
of the lots. If DAP is exempted from paying taxes, it does not foilow that
DB is also exempted, because DAP is & different entity from DBl. There
is a strong possibility that DB, since its incorporation in 1982, had been
delinquent in the payment of real estate tax. Considering the location of
the property, after 31 years, the real estate tax assessment could run into
millions of pesos. With the goal of increasing its tax collection, there is
alwaysthem(eﬁhoodmmmedemmdtormeuncoﬂectedtaxis sent 1o
DBI, or worse, gamishes the property in lieu of the unpaid real estate
taxes.

Management needs to protect the assets of the agency and at the same time
maintain financial records in accordance with accounting and auditing rules and
regulations. In compliance thereof, the following measures or courses of actions
were recommended:

a. Adjust the amount of the land so that only the lot in the name of the
Academy is reflected in the books. Until the issue on ownership of
the lots Is resolved in favor of the Academy, it is appropriate that the
value of the three lots be deleted from the books; and

b. Avail of all legal remedies to resolve the ownership of the other three
iots where the DAP building is located to avold possibie problem
with the unpaid real estate tax and at the same time, protect the
assets of the Academy.

According to Management, the ownership of the DAP assets cited herein was
transferred via Deeds of Conveyance to the newly-formed DBl which was
registered with the SEC with DAP not being included in the DBl Such
conveyance of ownership of DAP properties to DBl violated the Academy’s
Charter, PD 205 and therefore, can be considered void ab initio. it was also
stated that the DBI has never been operational and its board never convened
since its establishment. DBI has been effectively dormant all these years, to this
end, DAP has sent a letter to the DOJ Secretary seeking legal opinion to a
singular query: “Did the Development Academy of the Philippines validly convey
its land properties covered by TCT Nos. 32172, 32173 and 32174 located at San
Antonio Village, Pasig City in favor of DAP Building Inc.?




it was further stated in the Management reply that DAP has to emphatically and
consistently assert that it owns these properties and shall continue to reflect such
in its books of accounts. Deleting them from their accounting books could be
construed as relinquishing the DAP's ownership rights, an injudicious move that
will be contrary to the interest of the Academy.

The Academy approved the granting of additional benefits to its regular officers
and employees In the form of CY 2011 Financial Performance Award (FPA) in the
total amount of £5,197,573.25 without legal basis. The benefit was released in
December 2012.

31
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With the issuance of RA 6758 or the Compensation and Position Classification
Act of 1989, all govemment institutions including govemment-owned or
controlled corporations and financial institutions are prohibited from granting
additional benefits and allowances to its officers and employees without the
approval of the Department of Budget and Management (DBM). This is explicitly
provided in Section 12 of the mentioned law, excerpts follows:

sConsolidation of Allowances and Compensation. - All allowances, except for
representation and transportation allowances; clothing and laundry ailowances;
subsistence allowance of marine officers and crew on board government vessels
and hospital personnel; hazard pay; allowances of foreign service personne!
stationed abroad: and such other additional compensation not otherwise
specified herein gs may be determined by the DBM, shall be deemed included in
the standardized salary rates herein prescribed. (underscoring supplied)

JEV No. 12-12-2463 dated December 28, 2012 recorded the payment of the CY
2011 FPA to 189 permanent personnel of the Academy in the amount of
R5,107,573.25. Aside from the payroll print-out from the Landbank of the
Philippines, no other supporting document was attached to the JEV.

Examination of the documents on file pertaining to the FPA disclosed that there
was a disallowance on the CY 2004 FPA granted to the Academy’s officers and
employees in the amount of B4,862,845.71. The then Corporate Auditor, citing
deficiencies in the payments thereof, issued AOM No. 05-003 dated March 3,
2005. Based on the AOM, the Legal and Adjudication Cffice (LAQ) disallowed
the full payment of the FPA and issued Notice of Disallowance (ND) No. DAP-08-
001(04) dated June 27, 2008, for lack of legal basis and non-compliance with RA
8758 or the Salary Standardization Law.

DAP appealed the disallowance but the Commission Proper, through Decision
No. 2012-119 dated July 17, 2012 denied the appeal, until A Notice of Finality of
Decision (NFD) dated December 14, 2012 was issued making the disallowance
final and executory. The NFD directed all the persons liable named in the Notice
of Disallowance to pay immediately to the cashier the amount disallowed or
withhold payment of salary and other money due the persons liable.
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DAP, through the Office of the Govemment Corporate Counsel, went to Supreme
Court (SC) to prevent the implementation of the NFD. The SC en bang, in its
resolution dated February 26, 2013 resolved to:

a. Grant the prayer to issuance of a TRO;

b. [ssue a Temporary Restraining Order, effective immediately and until
further orders from the Court, enjoining the Commission On Audit from
enforcing Notice of Disallowance No, DAP-06-110(04) dated June 27,
200%; and

c. Require the petitioner to file a REPLY to the comment on petition within
ten (10) days from notice hereof.

The Temporary Restraining Order (TRO) temporarily prevented the enforcement
of the NFD, i.e., retum of the disallowed amount received from the granted CY
2004 FPA. it should be noted that the TRO did not invalidate the Notice of
Disaliowance No, DAP No. 08-110-(04). Thus, the basis for which the 2004 FPA
in the amount of P4,862,845.71 was granted was still invalid and merited the
disaliowance issued.

The foregoing circumstances showed that the despite the issuance of TRO on
the NFD for the CY 2004 FPA, Management had not submitted any document
showing that the granted FPA had authority from the DBM as required by RA
6758. In view thereof, the total amount of 85,197,573.25 shall be disallowed in
audit.

4. Despite the issuance of Notice of Disallowance on the CY 2004 Financial
Performance Award (FPA), the Academy obligated a liability of R7.277 miilion for
the payment of the CY 2013 (FPA) to the officers and employees of the Academy
without legal basls, thereby overstating both the liability and expense accounts by
the same amount.

4.1

4.2

In the review of the liabilities of the Academy as of December 31, 2013, an
obligated liability in the amount of B7,277,108 was noted. Journa! Entry Voucher
(JEV) No. 13-12-2893 shows the following entry:

Account & Explanation Code Debit Credit
Other Maintenance and Operating 8828-400 7,277,108.00

Bxpenses (MWE) ~ OPC

Accounts Payable 401-100 7.277,108.00

The JEV and the corresponding Budget Utilization Slip (BUS) indicated that the
entry was to take up the 2013 Financial Performance Award (FPA). Aside from
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the JEV and BUS, no other document was submitted to support the journal entry.
As of the end of CY 2013, the pertinent accounts, Other Maintenance and
Operating Expenses (MWE) — OPC and Accounts Payable had balances of
212,368,988.68 and P104,266,093.05, respectively.

The obligated FPA significantly affected the 2013 Statement of Income and
Expenses of the Academy. For CY 2013, the Academy reported a Net Income,
after Government subsidy, of £4,111,483. If the FPA was not obligated, the Net
Income, after Government subsidy, for CY 2013 would amount to 211,388,591,

computed as follows:

Reported net income R 4,111,483
Add back: Obligated FPA 7.277.108
Should be net income R11,388,5691

Since the TRO was not sufficient to warrant the granting of 2013 FPA, the
obligated amount of R7,277,108 was still without legal basis.

We recommended that payment of the CY 2013 FPA to the Academy’s
regular officers and employees be not pursued and the affected accounts

be adjusted accordingly by the following proposed adjusting entry:

Account & Explanation Code Debit Credit
Accounts Payable 401-100  7,277,108.00

Other Maintenance and Operating 889400 7.277,108.00
Expenses (MWE) - OPC

DAP response: “DAP respectfully submits that the 2013 FPA has, in fact, a legal
basis and that is, the Program on Awards and Incentives of “PRAISE®, which was
duly approved by the Civil Service Commission {CSC) on 19 February 2009."

Rejoinder: The FPA, as previously granted, was given to all DAP officials and
employees without distinction, different from the award contemplated in PRAISE
where the awardea/s from among a group of nominees is/are chosen as a result
of a selection process.

" The assets of the Academy were inadequately insured for the period November 2,
2013 to November 2, 2014 as building renovations, equipment and other assets in
the amount of at least P93.565 million were not included in the insurance coverage
secured from the Government Service Insurance System (GSIS).
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Excerpt from Section 5, RA 656 states the following:

“Every govemment, except a municipal govemment below first class, is
hereby required to insure its properties, with the Fund against any insurable
risk herein provided and pay the premiums thereon, which, however, shall not
exceed the premiums charged by private insurance companies...”

The Academy had been religiously securing insurance policies from the GSIS for
its buildings and facilities situated in Pasig City and Tagaytay City. The annual
period of insurance coverage was from November 2 of the current year to
November 2 of the ensuing year. The pertinent insurance policies ghowed that
the Academy's assets were covered against fire and lightning, full earthquake
and typhoon flood. The total amount insured was P177,346,131.02 as shown in

the following page:

Location Property Amount Insured
DAP - Building R 93,963,000.00
Pasig City Fumniture, fixtures and equipment 25,896,531.02

Sub — total 119,859,531.02

DAP - Buillding 48,819,005.33
Tagaytay City Fumniture, fidures and equipment 8,667,584.67
Sub — total 57,486,600.00

Grand total R 177,346,131.02

It was noted that the sum insured remained the same for the following three
consecutive insurance periods:

a. November 2, 2011 to November 2, 2012
b. November 2, 2012 to November 2, 2013
c November 2, 2013 to November 2, 2014

It was unlikely that the total sum insured remained the same for the mentionad
insurance periods because the assets of the Academy is continuously increasing
due to major renovation of the buildings in Pasig City and Tagaytay City in
previous and current years. In addition, the Academy had procured furniture and
equipment for the last three years.

it was determined that the amount of net assets with inadequate insurance
coverage amounted to at least £93,565,272. The amount was based from the
annual increase in several categories of the Property, Plant and Equipment and
deducted thereon was the comesponding annual disposal of assets. The
computation of the net increase in assets is shown in the next page:
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Annual Increase
Particulars 2014 2012 2013 Total
Buiiding P 30238503 B18,023,355 | A 24,449,050 B 73,610,808
Arts, archeological
' 500
g 472,500 472,
Equipment

(Office, IT and| 3328571| 18,153,556 7,703,838 29,185,965
communication)

Total 34,030,574 | 37,076,911 | 32,152,888 103,269,373

Disposal (7,779,991) | (1,681,420) (242,8680) {9,704,101)

Netincrease | R 26,250,583| R35,385491 | £31,910,198 R 93,565272

Management had to consider that the under insurance of assets in the amount of
P93.565 million, exposed said assets fo risks. Adequate insurance coverage
serves as the cushion of Management that in the event the risks occur, the effect
of losses in assets would ba greatly reduced. Considering the prevailing changes
in the environment/climate, there is always the probability of the occurrence of
fortuitous events that would cause damage to the property.

In compliance with RA 656 and reduce losses in the event of the
occurrence of the risks, it was recommended that Management secure
adequate insurance coverage for the Academy’s property. Coordinate with
the authorized personnel of the GSIS for the revaluation of the renovations
of the DAP bulldings for insurance purposes. Submit the latest physical
inventory of the contents of the account Property, Plant and Equipment to
update the insurance coverage thereof.

Excerpts of the response of DAP Management is quoted hereunder:

“Management respecfully notes that the amount R83.5685 million is an
overstatement of the amount to be insured. For the period representing CY 2013-
14, based on accounting book values, it is estimated that the total amount of
insurable DAP properties and assets should be £88,855,728.98; or about
£8.708M (7.1%) lower than the AOM-figure of R93,565 millicn.

Cognizant of the risks and externalities that may happen to DAP Properties,
instructions to the concemed offices were made to facilitate reascnable
insurance coverage subject to the terms and conditions acceptable to the non-life
insurance policies of GSIS...."

Rejoinder: The increase of R93.565 millilon was determined using the figures as
presented in the audited financia! statements of the Academy for the years 2011,
2012 and 2013. The computation was presented in the table following paragraph
5.5.




The uncollected rent and other dues from various lessees of the DAP amounted to
at least 11.284 million as of CY 2013. The detalls are discussed below:

8.1  For the inability to implement the provisions of the Contract of Lease, there
were delays in the payment of rent of P819,249.47 and the interest accruing
thereon in the amount of #183,792.21 was not billed and collected from the
lessees.

6.1.1 The Academy had been leasing about 1,700 square meters of its Pasig
building to both public and private entities. The rentel rate ranges from
K382 to R492 per square meter (sam) exclusive of auxiliary payment for
common services of RS0 per sqm, proportionate share in electricity

consumption and use of air-conditioning system.

6.1.2 The Contract of Lease provides, among others, the following:

a. Upon renewal of the lease, the rent shall be automatically
increased by 10 per cent

b. The lessee shall pay the [easor in advance the monthly rentals
within the first five days of every calendar month

¢ In case of defauit in the payment of rent, the lessee shall pay
interest at the rate of 1.4% per day until the outstanding obligation
or arrearages shall have been fully paid.

8.1.3 Review of the Contracts of Lease and the rent paid by the lessees
showed that the above-cited provisions were not implemented resulting to
under collections of R183,782.21, details are shown below and in the
following page:

No. of Interestin | Underpayment
Lessee Days/Mos. Default Due to Delayed R
Defauit Contract Renewal
ACF 882 days P 73,449.97 P 1,414.02 | Contract for CY 2013 signed
Consultancy & on June 27, 2013; no renewal
Training Servise for 2014.

Philippine Contract for CY 2013 signed
Business Forthe | 452 days 82,004.50 7,055.88 | in August 1913; no renewal of
Environment, inc. contract for 2014,

Makati Contract for CY 2013 signed
Paladdian 443 days 22,338.21 261000 | in September 1913; no
Assoclation, Inc renewa) of contract for 2014.
Robles, Salo, Original Contract was done
Dulnuan  Law 28.39 last August 12, 2011; no




maonths 6,002.03 358,105.84 | renewal of contract for 2013
and 2014,

Philippine
Health

Insurance
Corporation

Term of Contract: August 186,
442 363.95 | 2010 to August 15, 2012; No
844 days - term for default of payment
and stil no renewal of
contract for 2013 and 2014,

Total

£183,792.71 | B 819,249.47

6.1.4

8.1.5

it was noted that lessees were billed only for the updated rental rate upon
the renewal of the lease contracts, and since the execution of the cumrent
year contracts were delayed by at least six months, payment for current
rental rates were also delayed. As provided in the lease contracts, in case
of default in the payment of rent, the lesses shall pay interest at the rate
of 1.4 per cent per day unti! the outstanding obligation or arrearages shall
have been fully paid.

The delayed rental payment for CY 2013 amounted to £819,240.47.
Following the confract provision of 1.4 per cent interest on defauit
payment, the interest accruing thereon totaled £183,792.21.

6.2 The Philippine Center for Environmental Protection and Sustainable
Development, Inc., (PCEPSDI} had not been paying rent to the Academy
since 2011. The unpaid rent from CYs 2011 to 2013 amounted to
£804,696.00.

8.2.1

8.2.2

Section 35 of PD. 1445 states that;

“Coflection of indebtedness due the government. The Commission
shall, through proper channels, assist in the collection and
enforcement of all debts and claims and the restitution of all funds or
replacement or payment at a reasonable price of property, found to be
due to the Govemment, or any subdivision, agencies or
instrumentalities, or any to be due to the govemment, owned or
controlled corporation ..., in the seftlement and adjustment of its
accounts...”

The unpaid rent and use of electricity of the PCEPSD! had already been
the subject of an audit observation fully discussed in the 2011 Annual
Audit Report of the Academy. The reply to the observation was contained
in a letter dated June 28, 2013 signed by the Academy’s President.
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623 The letter mentioned that the National Eco-labeling Program-Green
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Cheice Philippines (NELP-GCP), as stated in the Memorand.um of
Agreement (MOA) with the Academy, is & quasi-govemment entity that
alms to protect the environment.

DAP and NELP-GCP entered into a MOA for the Environment Protection
and Sustainable Development. To carry-out the purposes thereof and due
to limited resources of NELP-GCP, DAP shall extend assistance by
providing office space gratuitously to the former's secretariat which is the
PCEPSD!. However, ufiliies such as electricity, water, telephone and
other means of communication were for the account of the NELP-GCP
Secretariat

Evaluation of the MOA between the named parties and the surrounding
circumstances, showed that neither NELP-GCP nor PCEPSDI is a
govemment entity. Aithough NELP-GCP has a noble purpose, i.e.,
protection of the environment; and even if it entered into an agreement
with DAP, its attributes and personality remain a private entity. The same
is true with PCEPSDI.

Section 4(2) of PD 1445 states, “Govemnment funds or property shall ba
spent or used solely for public purposes.” The office space gratuitousty
granted to PCEPSD! was contrary to this provision; hence, Section 35 of
the same PD, (eariier quoted hersin) shail be enforced.

DAP charges its lessees rental rates ranging from R542 to R392 per
sqm/month. For purposes of conservatism, the lowest rental rate of
R392/sqm was used to determine the amount of unpaid rent of PCEPSDI
from 2011 to 2013. Computation showed the rent due amounted fo
R804,686.00 as shown in the following page:

Year Rent Remarks

2011 R 291,960.00 Referred from the 2011
DAP Annua! Audit
Report

2012 282,240.00 R 382 per 60 sqm.

2013 230,496.00 £ 392 per 49 sqm.

Total R 804,696.00

A lessee was granted accommodations not enjoyed by other lessees
resulting to further reduction in rental income in the amount of P276,124.80
and unpald auxillary services of 35,220 for CY 2013.

8.3.1

The latest Contract of Leass for Salo Robles Dulnuan Law Office (SRDLO)
on file covered the period August 1, 2011 to December 31, 2012. The
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6.3.2

8.3.3

6.34

lease covered 73 sqm., more or less, of the 2™ fioor lower leve! of the DAP
Building. it should be noted that Jease ferm was for one year and five
months while the lease term for other lessees ware for one year.

For default payment in rent, the lease contract of all lessees provided for
the following:

* . In case of default payment in rent, the LESSEE shall pay interest at the
rate of one point four percent (1.4%) per day until the outstanding
obligation or arrearages shall have been fully paid” In the case of the
Contract of Leass of SRDLO, the penalty for default rent was 1.4% per
month, not per day.

In 2013, the law office transferred to a bigger office space at the 5™ floor of
the same building with an area of approximately 131.7 sqm. However, the
menthly rent being pald by the SRDLO for CY 2013 was still #28,616,
based ¢n the 73 sam of space it formerly occupied.

At the rental rate of 8392/sqm., SRDLO should have paid the Academy an
additional monthly rent of £22,010.04 or B276,124.80 [(131.7 sqm -73
sqm) x P392 x12] for CY 2013. Further, the lessee had not been paying
the auxiliary rate of R50/sqm based on the new space it is oceupying. For
CY 2013, the unpaid awdliary amounted to 835,220.00 [{131.7 sqm -73
sqm) x P50 x12]. Renewal of the lease contact based on the current area
occupied was being pursued by the unit in-charge, a copy was already
provided to the lessese for comment and signeture but to date the contract
remained with the lessee.

In view of the foregoing, it is recommended that Management:

a.

b.

evaluate existing lease contracts; and
collect the amount of P1,293,831.48 from the following lessees:

Lessee Amount

The Philippine Center for Environmental Protection and | 8 804,696.00
Sustainable Development, Inc

ACF Consulting and Training Service 73,448.97
Philippine Business For the Environmert, Inc. §2,004.50
Makati Paladdian Association, Inc. 22,336.21
Robles Salo Dulnuan Law Office 311,344.80

Total B 1,283831.48

4
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DAP considered the recommendation. The Center for Office and Conference
Facilities (COCF)shanmsﬁhnetheneoassarypmcadurestopreparemeensum
{ease Contracts as soon as possible before the expiration of said contracts.
Management has directed the COCF to:

> Critically examine each contract terms such that arrangements stipulated
in the contract will not unduly disadvantage the Academy;

> Consider increasing the duration of the contract per tenant on a much
longer period of coverage such that hassle of renewal is minimized; and

> Except for contracts that have already been approved and signed,
preparation of the ensuing contract (as necessary) shall start at least a
month or two before expiry-date.

As to the observation on the RSDLO, Management stated it was DAP that
required the tenant to transfer from the 2* floor to the 4™ floor because DAP’s
repair and rehabilitation plan had a timetable to foflow. it would be more costly for
DAP to postpone the repair of the 2™ fioar. DAP gave an assurance to the law
office that their monthly rental would not unjustiy change.

Management provided a specific and lengthy discussion on the circumstances
surrounding the creation of PCEPSDI. Briefiy stated, it was stated that in view of
the termination of the corporate existence of the Clean and Green Foundation
(CGF) in 2010, its property and the National Eco-Labeling Program (NELP)
Secretariat was transferred to PCEPSD!.

The NELP came into being because of the idea initiated by the Academy, i.e.,
labeling eco-friendly products which use envirenment friendly ingredients that are
not or less hazardous to nature and the environment. The NELP, implemented
through PCEPSD), is doing a public purpose or a public business because it
promotes environmental protection and sustainability through the labeling of eco-
friendly products, thus encouraging manufacturers to use eco-friendly
ingredients, as well as encouraging the public to patronize eco-friendly products.

However, Management further stated the foilowing, “Cognizant of the legal point
that PCEPSDI is technically not a govenment entity, DAP has no {onger made
PCEPSDl a party to any contract conceming the office it presently
occuples... Moreover DAP, is now negofiating with DENR if it can now be the one
to provide said office spate in its offices in DENR, inasmuch as DAP will be

needing additional space for its programs and projects.”

Expenses related to Gender and Development (GAD) incurred by DAP for CY 2013
was below the five percent budget required by 2013 General Appropriation Act.



71

7.2

7.3

74

In compliance with the Philippines’ commitment to the Intemational Conventions
on Gender and Development (GAD), Executive Order No. 273 dated September
8, 1895 and Joint Circular No. 2004-1 dated April 5, 2004 of the Department of
Budget and Management, National Economic and Development Authority and
National Commission on the Role of Filipino Women [now Philippine Commission
on Women (PCW)] was issued. The Joint Circular provides for the following:

“Section 2.2. In accordance with Executive Order (EQ) No. 273 -
Approving and Adopting the Philippine Plan for Gender-Responsiveness
Development, 1895-2025), agencies are mandated to institutionalize
Gender and Davelopment (GAD) in govemmant by incorporating the GAD
concemns spelied out in the PPGD in their planning, programming and
budgeting process. EQ 273 also mandates agencies to incorporates and
reflect GAD concems in their agency perfomance commitment contracts,
annual budget proposals and work and financial plan.”

To ensure compliance with the above provision, the National Government
incorporates to the General Provisions of the General Appropriations Act (GAA)
the following:

“Programs and Projects Related to Gender and Development. All
agencies of the govemment shall formulate a Gender and Development
(GAD) Plan designed to address gender issues within their concemed
sectors or mandate and implement applicable provision under R.A. No.
9710 or the Magna Carta of Women, Convention on the Elimination of All
Forms of Discrimination Against Women, the Beljing Platform for Action,
the Millennium development Goals (2000-2015), the Philippine Plan for
Gender-Responsive Development (1895-2025), and the Philippine
Development Plan (2011-2013).”

The GAD Plan shall be integrated in the regular activities of the agencies, which
shall be at least five percent (5%) of their budgets. For this purpose, activities
currently being undertaken, by agencies which relate to GAD or those that
contribute to poverty alleviation, economic empowemment especially of
marginalized women, protection , promotion, and fulfilment of women’s human
rights, and practice of gender responsive govemnance are consider sufficient
compliance with said requirement. Utilization of GAD shall be evaluated based
on the GAD budgst and GAD performance indicators.

Compliance of the Academy with the aforementioned provisions of the Joint
Circular and GAA were evaluated and the Breakdown of Activities and Cost of
GAD 2013 under staff Development is shown in the following page:
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Activity Particulars Dates Amount
Skin Care | Free FacialfHand Spa July 28, 2013 g -0 -
Services

SeminarANorkshop on Protoco! | August 13-15, 2013
100,460
Training Round Table Discussion on | September 3, 2013
Gender and Politics
Phithealth Fun Run 2013 February 7, 2013 22,270
CSC Fun Run September 7, 2013 8,400
Aerobic/Zumba Activity March 2013 22,250
Wellness Women's Volleyball tournament
relative with the One-DAP 40"
Anniversary Celebration 25,000
Tarpaulin  in  support for
Advocacy Waomen's Month and | March 8, 2013 3,000
International Women's Day
Cthers One-DAP 40"  Anniversary
Saclo-Cultural/Recreation
Events (Court of New Faces and | June 2013 133,620
40™ Anniversary Soclals)
Total B 315,000*
*5% of staff Development Budget

The Corporate Operating Budget of DAP for CY 2013 approved by the DBM
amounted to R556.924 million. Following the GAA provisions, five per cent
thereof should amount to £27.848 million. However, the actual expenses allotted
by the Academy to GAD related activities amounted to R315,000. This amount
was considered an insignificant portion of B27.850 million, an indication that the
Academy had been giving less priority to support the commitment of the National
Govemment to the Gender-Responsiveness Development envisioned by DBM,
NEDA and PCW,

it was recommended that Management appropriate five per cent of its
operating budget to Gender and Development activities that would support
the commitment of the Philippines on the International Convention on
Gender and Development and other related issuances.

Management reply to the observation is quoted hereunder:

“In order to increase expenses of DAP to more acceptable levels, GAD projects
have been incorporated in various units of the DAP, using a GAD Focal Point
System (GFPS) created for the purpose. Moreover, in accordance with #36 of
JMC 2012-01, the Academy’s regular programs, whether as part of revenue-




generating activities orfand intemal administration, shall be assessed the
*Harmonized GAD Guidelines for Attribution to the GAD-related Concems.”

A.2 Status of Unsettied Audit Disallowances, Charges and Suspensions

Below is the summary of the unsettied audit disallowances, charges and
suspensions as of December 31, 2013, The details are presented in Annex A.

Beginning Batance lssued Settled Ending Balance
Actiontaken | 5o, iary 1, 2013 December 31, 2013

Suspensions | B 38,000.00* R 14783354 R 7438102 |B  111,55252
Disallowances 2,930,115.08* - 2,830,115.98
Charges - . -

Total B 3,044,049.98 R 14703364 (P 7438102 P 3,041,868.60

*Amounts adjusted in the in the 3% quarter of CY 2013
45
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B. STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR YEAR'S AUDIT
RECOMMENDATIONS

Of the 24)audit recommendations in last years annual audit report, 13 were
implemented, four were partially implemented and seven wera not implemented as

align qualified personnel
positions thereafter;

. Require the refund of

H2,405,723.22

. Submit the basis of

deduction made from the
TA of the concemed
officers/employees for the
determination of the
appropriate refund of the
TA they received; and

, Compute all the incidental

cost incurred in the use of
agency vehicles by the
two officers concemed,
bill them separately and
require immediate

payment.

indicated below:
Comments and Observations Recommendations Actions Taken/
Comments
1. The grant of a. Discontinue the granting Notimplemented.
Representation and of RATA to officials not
Transportation Allowance entited to receive the Now being addressed
(RATA) to some of the allowances; since the Board
officers of the instructed DAP
Development Academy of . Adopt the RATA provided Management 1o retrofit
the Philippines (DAP) was by the DBM in harmony its current structure.
not in accordance with the with the rates prescribed
Department Budget and in the 2012 GAA;
Managements  (DBM)
identified positions . Obtain DBM approval on Awating DBM's action on
authorized to receive the the current DAP the presentation for the
allowance. organizational  structure, recognition/legitimization

of the Academy’s 2002
structure.

Deductions made for CY
2012 and 2018,




Comments and Ohservations

\/2. The Academy incurred

consuitancy services
amounting to PR33.246
million  consisting  of
Consultancy Services, GM
R54984 million and
Consuitancy  Services,
OPC B27.752 milion
without sufficient
documentation and
contrary to RA 9184

3. Toll fees at |least

238,350 incurred by
some of the officials of the
Academy en route from
DAP to their residences
and back to DAP Offices
which were personal in
nature were paid out of
Academy’s fund.

Recommendations

a. Comply with the provision
of RA 9184 in hiring
consulitants for
transparency  purposes
and provide the Academy
opporiunity to choose the
best professionals for the
consuitancy services in
requires. Likewise,
implement the sanclions
expressly provided for non
compliance of the law;

b. Adopt written
policy/guidelines (PPG) in
hiring consuitants. The
written PPG will address
the deficiencies noted in
the necessity, vagueness
and overiapping
responsibilities as
discussed in the
observation;

c. Evaluate and streamline
the current roster of
consultants.  Discontinue
renewing consultants with
redundant responsibilities;

d. Establish the extent of the
tegal services needed and
determine whether to
retain the services of the
OGCC or a legal
consuitant.

a. Immediately stop paying
the toll fees relative to the
travel of the Academy’s
cfficials en route from
DAP to thelr residences
and back to their
respective work stations,

b. Cause the full and
immediate refund of the

Actions Taken/
Comments

Partially implemented.

Implemented.

On 17 February 2014,
HRMDO presented
highlights of the
proposed Memorandum
Circular on the hiring of
consultants and the
accreditation system to
the DAO Mancom for
deliberation.

implemented.

DAP maintained the
need for a separate
intenal legal unit due to
the volume of business.

Implemented.

The excess toll fees were
deducted from the
salaries of the respettive
personne] and the toll
fees ara now bheing
shouldered by the
concemed DAP officials

and employees.

47




Comments and Observations

4. in CY 2012, the Academy
advanced the insurance
premiums of its official
and employees amounting
to R1,780 milien to &
health maintenance
organization (HMO)
through DAP Pasig Muiti-
purpose Cooperative
contrary to Section 4{2) of
PD 1445

6. The conferences and
seminars relative to the
Executive  Development
Program  for  State
Universities and Collages
(EDPSSUCSs) were held in
luxury  establishments,
with the DAP spending at
least B23.60 milion for
the purpose. This contrary
to austerity measures
embodied in AQ 103,
DBM Circular 486 and
COA Circular 2013-003
dated August 31, 2004,
March 26, 2003 and
October 28, 2012,

raspectively.

Recommendations

toll fees which were
deemed to be personal
expense

a. Discontinue the practice
of advancing the payment
of quarterly  health
insurance premiums to
Medocare thru  the
Cooperative in
compliance with the
provision of Section 4(2)
of PD 1445;

b. Deduct immediately from
the salary or any other
benefits due to the
employees, the  full
amount of advances
made by the Academy in
relation to the payments
made to Medocare; and

¢. Henceforth, require the
DAP Pasig Multi-purpose
Cooperative to shoulder
the advance premium
payments to Medocare.

a. Discontinue the conduct
of seminars and
conferences in  luxury
hotels and restaurants;

b. For seminars,
conferences and trainings
within  Metro  Manila,
consider conducting them
in-house as the Academy
has facilities in Pasig and
Tagaytay, and

c. Exercise in the
disbursement of
govermnment funds.

Actions Taken/
Comments

impiemented

Implemented.

Implemented.

implemented.

The use of the facilities in
DAPCC, Tagaytay could
not be totally
implemented for project-
based activites because
there were activities that
invoived a large number
of participants and could
not be accommodated by
the facilities. In addition,
DAPCC is almost fully
booked for the Public
Management

Development  Program
(PMDP) which is fully
funded by the




Comments and Ohservations

Amammmm

heen remitting in full the
cost of the audit services
since 1880 contrary to the
provisions of the
Commission on Audit
(COA) and Department of
Budget and Management
(DBM) Joint Circular No.
88-1 dated July 29, 1888.
The outstanding balance
due to the Commission
amounted to R34.85
million as of CY 2012.

. The Academy was uneble

to formulate a Gender and
Development (GAD) Plan,
contrary to the provisions
of DBM-NEDA-NCRFW
JC No. 2004-1

Recommendations

a. Settle the latest

assessment received,;

b. Reconcile the Summary of

Assessments,
Remittances and
Balances transmitted by
the Commission with the
Academy’s records. It was
possible that there were
payments not considered
in the records of the
Commission;
communicate to the latter
any discrepancy noted;

Develop a  payment
scheme fto settle the
unpaid balence. Inform
the Commission of the

planned satlement
scheme and strictly abide
byit

. Formulate a GAD Plan

that will address the
gender issue of its female

employees;

. Set aside at least five

of the COB to
implement the GAD Plan;

. Appoint a GAD Focal

Point who will coordinate,
guide and monifor the

development and
implementaton of the
agency’s GAD Plan.

Actions Taken!/
Comments

Government.

Partially implemented.

DAP paid the amount of
over B2 milion to
partially cover the cost of
audit services due the
Academy.

DAP will include
setlement of unpald
balance in the Fund
Monitoring System that
will be implemented
sometime in April 2014.

Not implemented.

For CY 2013 DAP
reported the amount of
R315,000 spent for GAD
related activities, very
insignificant compared to
the R27.850 milion
required by the GAA.

Mr. Eric Abogado of
HRMDO is the GAD
Focal Peint of person of
DAP.
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Annex A
N T
NS/ND/NC/NSSDC PAYEE/PAYOR A M O U
Date No. Disallowed Suspended | Settied
ND 11-003-
10/25/2011]400-11 Alan S. Cajes 18,481.50
ND 11-004-
10/25/2011}400-11 Gleria J. Mercado 24,842.00
ND 11-001-
12/7/2011]100-10 Various officials 227,019.10
ND 11-010-
12/8/2011{400-11 Roberto C. Julian 64,685.25
ND 11-209-
12/8/2011}400-11 Guia Tan 82,407.50
ND 11-008-
12/8/2011}400-11 Eufemia C. Yap 48,203.75
ND 13-007- | Kenneth Hatigan-
12/8/2011{400-11 Go 83,166.75
ND 11-006-
12/8/2011)400-11 | Elena Herrera 258,741.00
ND 11086- | Various
12/8/2011]400-11 employees 150,741.00
ND 12-002- [ Magdalena L.
2/29/2012|837-11 Mendoza 15,440.85
ND 12-014-
6/11/2012]100-11 42 various payees 80,081.69
ND 12-015- | Monica D.
6/11/2012(816-11 Sallendres 2,212.00
ND 11-020- | Bonnie Andrew
6/11/2012751-11  |Mendoza 188.00
ND 12-021- | Rosandro G.
6/11/2012|771-11 Bertis 912.27
ND 12-022-
6/11/2012{771-11 Erge!s de! Rosario 860.00
ND 12-024- | Magdalena L.
8/31/2012[837-11 Mendoza 34,191.49
ND 12-023-
8/21/2012/837-11 Bsmardo Dizon 38,000.00
ND 12-026-
10/10/2012[400-11 Criselda Abesamis| 23,625.00
ND 12-027- | Kenneth G.
10/10/2012}400-11 Rongquillo 172,425.00
ND 12-028-
10/10/2012{400-11 Lilibeth C. David 283,250.00
ND 12-028A-
10/10/2010(400-11 Mario Villaverde 50,625.00
ND 12-030-
10/10/20121400-11 Liezel P. Lagrada 64,125.00
ND 12-031- | Ruben John A.
10/10/2012|400-11 Basa 70,875.00
ND 12-032- | Benjamin E.
10/10/2012{406-11 Dickno 54,000.00
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U N T
NS/ND/NC/NSSDC PAYEE/PAYOR A MO
Date Na. Disallowed Suspended | Settlad
ND 12-033- | Eduardo P.
10/10/2012]400-11 Banzon 533,250.00
ND 12-034-
10/17/2012|400-11 Olga Virtusio 40,500.00
i ND 12-035-
10417/2012)400-11 Tomas B. Lopez 54,000.00
ND 12-036- | Albarto
10/17/2012|400-11 Romuledez, Jr. 87,500.00
ND 12-037- | Carlo [rwin A.
10/17/2012|400-11 Panelo 70,875.00
ND 12-038-
10/17/2012|400-11 Alberto G. Hesrera 38,083.00
ND 12-039- | Grace Gorospe-
10/17/2012)400-11 Jamon 47.250.00
ND 12-040-
10/17/2012}400-11 Joceiyn E. Gomez 30,750.00
ND 12-041- | .Jesus C.
11/8/2012|400-11 Anunciacion 12,834.25
— |ND 12-042- | Marion Romulo U.
11/9/2042j400-11 Bomingo 4,052.50
ND 12-043- | Rosalie Joan
11/2/2012|400-11 Sotelo 3,388.40
ND 12-043- | Genevive
11M/2011]400-11 Almonares 7,043.53
ND 12
11/8/2012|400-11 Allan G. Bacudo 3,084 56
ND 12-046- | Artemio P.
11/8/2012]400-11 Hahitan 4,373.10
ND 12-047- | Maximo G.
11/272012}400-11 Marques 6,854.64
ND 12-048- | Crizaldo G.
11/8/2012|400-11 Santos 860.76
NS 12-007-
10/20/2012|837-11 Gloria J. Mercado 48,000.00
ND 12-025-
10/4/2012{100-11 47 various payees 158,717.69
NS 12-002- | Pilipinas Shell |
6/6/2013|12 Corp 1,552.52
ND 2013-
10/1/2013|003{12) B. Nito 72,000.00
2,630,115.98 111,552.52




